



Annexes to EPASS 4-6

Annexes to EPASS 4-6

Learning Opportunities in Europass.

Fourth Meeting of the Europass Advisory Group

12 and 13 June 2019



Europass

1. Annex I

Members of the Temporary Working Group on Learning Opportunities in Europass

Country	Last Name	First Name
AUSTRIA	BALOCH-KALOIANOV	Eva
BELGIUM	GOETSCHALCKX	Gerd
FINLAND	KYTÖLÄ	Tomi
FRANCE	FOUBERT	Gilles
GERMANY	WERNER	Klaus
IRELAND	MCKENZIE	Jennifer
ITALY	CATOZI	Alessandro
ITALY	BENNI	Valentina
MALTA	SCHOLZ FENECH	Christine
NETHERLANDS	VAN DER SANDEN	Karin
PORTUGAL	FERREIRA	Paula
REPUBLIC OF NORTH MACEDONIA	NASKOVSKA-PETRESKI	Anabela
SLOVENIA	LOVISIN	Miha
SWEDEN	BEFRING	Eva-Marie
CEV	CIVICO	Gabriella
ETUCE	AALTONEN	Kristina
EUROCHAMBRES	DIEKMANN	Knut
LLLP	BUNESCU	Laurentiu

2. Annex II

Overview of national databases and other sources with learning opportunities

The following overview lists all sources received from 30 participating countries (31 replies) to the ‘Review of information on Learning Opportunities on the Learning Opportunities and Qualifications in Europe Portal (LOQ)’. The survey was carried out between 28 January and 15 February 2019 and sent to members of the Europass Advisory Group and representatives of National Euroguidance Centres.

The sources include both public and private databases and are grouped according to the types of learning opportunities presented in the database.

Integrated databases and databases with 2+ types of learning opportunities

Database	Country	Additional information
https://lerneninoesterreich.at/de/home/	AT	Contains opportunities in the field of VET, HE, AE
www.onderwijskiezer.be	BE(vl)	Contains opportunities in the field of primary, secondary and tertiary education, AE, VET
www.infoabsolvent.cz/	CZ	information about study possibilities, mainly secondary and VET schools, tertiary professional schools and Universities
https://kursnet-finden.arbeitsagentur.de/kurs/	DE	HE, AE, rehabilitation, secondary education (but for adults – ‘2er Bildungsweg’)
https://www.make-it-in-germany.com/de/	DE	information about entry and visa procedures, finding jobs, and living conditions in Germany, information about VET and HE
EHIS/www.ehis.ee	EE	information about all educational institutions, students, teachers and academic staff, graduation documents, rights to conduct study, documents certifying acquisition of education and curricula in Estonia; cooperates with 20+ information systems, i.e. Electronic Assessment Bank (https://eis.ekk.edu.ee/eis), Admission Information System for universities

		and vocational schools (https://sais.ee/), Study Information System (ois.ee/), Estonian School Management System (https://ekis.ee/), Estonian Research Portal (https://www.etis.ee/) EHIS currently in process of being updated; development of new database, bringing together various sources of information in one Education Portal (https://haridusportaal.edu.ee/)
http://ploigos.eoppep.gr/ekep/external/ext_lo_search.zul?uald=2	EL	
www.rncp.cncp.gouv.fr/	FR	
www.qualifax.ie/	IE	HE, AE
qqi.ie	IE	information on programmes and their providers offered which lead to QQI awards, comprehensive Register of Qs currently under development
https://careersportal.ie/	IE	Private?
https://mms.turing.is/	IS	
www.ug.dk/	DK	
https://hko.srce.hr/registar/	HR	CROQF Register (NQF)
www.niid.lv	LV	part of the career guidance support system aimed at students in general and vocational education at primary and secondary level; also targets parents, teachers, career advisors; information on general, VET and HE opportunities; also AE but are to be transferred to the database/source (macibaspieaugusajiem)
https://ncfhe.gov.mt/en/register/Documents/Register%20(Courses%20offered%20by%20Licensed%20Institutions).xlsx	MT	register of accredited programmes by licensed providers maintained and published by the NCFHE
www.careerswales.com/en/education-and-courses/		Secondary education, HE, AE, distance learning
www.rio-onderwijs.nl/	NL	RIO: Currently, a new, unified system is being developed to register educational institutions and learning opportunities - RIO offers the basic structure to enable the registration of organisational structure and training offer. In order to make good use of RIO and to make RIO a success, the administration system (or systems) of educational institutions will have to be set up according to the generic information model RIO, which has a more specific effect per educational sector. With RIO, the administration system will be the source for the data that are automatically supplied to the central registration.

https://twente.lerenenwerken.nl/	NL	regional initiative (Leren en Werken Twente) trying to integrate formal and informal learning opportunities, and the government is currently exploring the possibilities and needs concerning a national portal with individualised learning opportunities and advice.
utdanning.no	NO	Secondary Education, HE, CE
www.utbildningsinfo.se	SE	diff kinds of education, LOps and institutions
www.SeQF.se	SE	Qualifications on SEQF
www.allastudier.se	SE	Private provider, secondary education, HE, VET, AE
www.mojazbira.si/	SI	Secondary, short cycle learning, Matura, VET, AE
www.cvtisr.sk/skolstvo/regionalne-skolstvo.html?page_id=10267	SK	CVTI administrates and regularly updates database of pre-primary, primary and secondary schools, HEIs and further education institutions with offered study programmes and contact information as a basis for the national statistics on education as well as for information purposes;
www.portalvs.sk/sk/	SK	The portal VS was created by the EUNIS-SK association and supported by the Ministry of Education, Science, Research and Sport SR. Parties involved in the development of the portal: Ministry of Education, Slovak Centre of Scientific and Technical Information (CVTI) and universities: University of Žilina, Slovak Agricultural University in Nitra, Slovak Technical University in Bratislava, Trnava University in Trnava, the University of St. Cyril and Methodius in Trnava, Constantine the Philosopher University in Nitra, Technical University of Kosice, the Catholic University in Ružomberok
https://rejestr.kwalifikacje.gov.pl/	PL	database of all qualifications with PQF level
information system SIGO (sigo.pt) and public website (ofertaformativa.gov.pt)	PT	managed by General Directorate for Education and Science Statistics (DGEEC) with the National Agency for Qualification and Vocational Education (ANQEP); DGES website for HE with all HE courses accredited by Agency for Evaluation and Accreditation of HE (A3ES), includes accreditation status, Ministry's register number and main features of programme (https://www.dges.gov.pt/en/pesquisa_cursos_instituicoes)
http://obrazovanje.rs/ and http://education.rs/	RS	
www.ucas.com/	UK	Centralised database on LOps (including quality assurance) via UCAS

Primary and Secondary Education

Database	Country	Additional Information
http://rejskol.msmt.cz/	CZ	pre-primary, primary, secondary level schools
http://kk.gov.hu/tankeruletek	HU	primary/secondary schools
http://cercalatuascuola.istruzione.it/cercalatuascuola/	IT	hosted by Ministry of Education, University and Research, includes first and second cycle
www.mengschoul.lu	LU	Secondary education; by Ministry of Education
www.gymnasieinfo.se	SE	Upper secondary
https://krka1.mss.edus.si/registriweb/Default.aspx	SI	Kindergarden, primary, secondary, short cycle learning, music schools, student dorms: CEUVIZ
https://crinfo.iedu.sk/RISPortal/register/	SK	Detailed register of study programmes and school facilities; register of the Ministry of Education, Science, Research and Sport SR
www.zoznamskol.eu/typ/stredna-skola	SK	a database of schools and study branches, private
www.power.frse.org.pl	PL	Operational Programme Knowledge Education Development
www.etwinning.pl	PL	eTwinning
http://upis.mpn.gov.rs/Cir/Pocetna	RS	Secondary education (public schools)

VET (initial and higher)

Database	Country	Additional Information
www.berufsbildendeschulen.at	AT	provided by the Austrian Federal Ministry of Education, Science and Research
www.dorifor.be	BE(fr)	Contains information on VNFIL
https://formations.siep.be/	BE(fr)	
http://narodnikvalifikace.cz/	CZ	overview of nationally recognized VET Qs (and its qualification and assessment standards), which can be obtained through VNFIL; Also available in EN
www.kutseharidus.ee/	EE	
https://aprendealargodelavida.educacionyfp.gob.es/inici	ES	website “Aprende a lo largo de la vida” of the Ministry of Education and

o.html		Vocational Training collects general information about the training offer; connected to the Vocational Guidance and Training Portal (TodoFP_MEFP http://todofp.es/inicio.html) which includes tools used by guidance counsellors to support people navigating the different training pathways
www.onisep.fr	FR	
www.intercariforef.org/formations/recherche-formations.html	FR	
www.orientation-pour-tous.fr/	FR	
www.nive.hu/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=595&Itemid=267	HU	Vocational Training Centres
fetchcourses.ie	IE	
traineeship.ie	IE	supported by SOLAS, The Further Education and Training Authority
www.sistemait.it/	IT	Higher Technical Education; ITS courses
<p>Regione Valle d'Aosta (http://occupazione.regione.vda.it/dbweb/dpl/ObiettivoLN.nsf/ViewCatCorsi?OpenForm&tipo=ATT&),</p> <p>Regione Piemonte (www.regione.piemonte.it/web/temi/istruzione-formazione-lavoro/formazione-professionale/opportunita-formative),</p> <p>Regione Liguria (www.formazionelavoro.regione.liguria.it/?jij=1526566151808),</p> <p>Regione Lombardia (https://gefo.servizirl.it/selezionaPercorsi.php), Regione Veneto (www.regione.veneto.it/web/formazione-e-istruzione/cercocorso - www.cliclavoroveneto.it/cerca-corsi-di-formazione),</p>	IT	

<p>Regione Friuli Venezia Giulia (www.regione.fvg.it/rafvfg/cms/RAFVG/formazione-lavoro/ - www.regione.fvg.it/rafvfg/cms/RAFVG/formazione- lavoro/formazione/fondo-sociale-europeo/FOGLIA21/ - http://ecm.sanita.fvg.it/ecm/catalogo - www.regione.fvg.it/rafvfg/cms/RAFVG/istruzione- ricerca/regione-per-orientatori/FOGLIA7/),</p> <p>Regione Emilia Romagna (http://formazionelavoro.regione.emilia-romagna.it/corsi- di-formazione-in-emilia-romagna - http://orienter.regione.emilia- romagna.it/orienter/exec/portale?actionRequested=perfor mShowCorsiFormazioneProfessionale), Regione Marche (www.regione.marche.it/Regione-Utile/Lavoro-e-Formazione-Professionale/Corsi-autorizzati-e-Catalogo-regionale-formazione-FORMICA#Presentazione),</p> <p>Regione Umbria https://siru.regione.umbria.it/SIRU/catalogo_off/index_public.php),</p> <p>Regione Toscana (https://servizi.toscana.it/RT/catalogo-formativo/#/catalogo/ricerca), Regione Lazio (www.regione.lazio.it/rl_formazione/?vw=offertaformativa - www.regione.lazio.it/rl_formazione/?vw=riesco),</p> <p>Regione Abruzzo (www.abruzzolavoro.eu/formazione-professionale/catalogo-regionale-dei-corsi-riconosciuti/),</p> <p>Regione Molise (www.garanziagiovani.molise.it/),</p> <p>Regione Campania</p>		
--	--	--

<p>(www.regione.campania.it/regione/it/tematiche/magazine-formazione - www.lavorocampania.it/ARLAS/pages/it/homepage/1_10_1/1_10_1_2/1_10_1_11/;jsessionid=F31C01F6C8304FD6B1CAA0BF4090578),</p> <p>Regione Puglia (www.sistema.puglia.it/portal/page/portal/SistemaPuglia/cataloghiinformativi),</p> <p>Regione Basilicata (www.regione.basilicata.it/giunta/site/giunta/detail.jsp?otype=1057&id=243428&dep=100056&area=109331 - http://portalebandi.regione.basilicata.it/PortaleBandi/searchCur.jsp),</p> <p>Regione Calabria (http://politicheattivecalabria.it/),</p> <p>Regione Sicilia (www.sicilia-fse.it/DesktopDefault.aspx?tabid=4&mid=44),</p> <p>Regione Sardegna (https://servizi.sardegna.lavoro.it/OFFC/RilevazioneInterventiFormativi.aspx),</p> <p>Provincia Autonoma di Trento (http://formazionexte.agenzia.lavoro.tn.it/)</p> <p>Provincia Autonoma di Bolzano (www.provincia.bz.it/formazione-professionale/catalogo-corsi-online.asp)</p>		
<p>http://public.asoo.hr/</p>	<p>HR</p>	
<p>www.anelo.lu</p>	<p>LU</p>	<p>guidance (employment, E&T) for young people</p>

www.beruffer.anelo.lu	LU	career guidance for young people
https://viis.lv/	LV	National Education Information System contains a register of education professionals, education institutions, child minding service providers, psychologists and institutions
https://duo.nl/open_onderwijsdata/databestanden/mbo/crebo/index.jsp	NL	VET programs recognised by the Government are registered in CREBO, the central register for recognised vet programs
http://kwalificaties.s-bb.nl	NL	Information on qualifications available on a website of SBB, the agency for VET qualifications
www.yrkeshogskolan.se/	SE	Higher VET
http://stor.praca.gov.pl/portal/#/ris/wyszukiwarka	PL	Rejestr Instytucji Szkoleniowych (Training Institutions Register)
https://zrp.pl/dzialalnosc-zrp/oswiata-zawodowa/egzaminy/	PL	Polish Craft Association
https://www.notgoingtouni.co.uk/category/employment-training notgoingtouni.co.uk	UK	Not Going to Uni (NGTU)

Higher Education

Database	Country	Additional Information
www.hogeronderwijsregister.be	BE(vl)	recognised training in higher education in Flanders
www.prosocbru.be/	BE(fr)	
studirajvani.ba	BiH	
https://regvssp.msmt.cz/registrvssp/	CZ	
https://portal.studyin.cz/	CZ	study programmes in foreign languages at HEIs
www.hochschulkompass.de	DE	Information about study programs and doctorate opportunities in Germany and comprehensive information on state recognized universities in Germany
www.studienwahl.de	DE	information on degree programs, universities, application and admission procedures and topics related to studying
https://www.arbeitsagentur.de/bildung/studium	DE	offers self-exploration for individual field of study und information about study programs

www.study-in.de	DE	comprehensive information about studying in Germany
www.studyinestonia.ee/en	EE	
www.educacion.gob.es/notasdecorte/compBdDo	ES	portal QEDU of the Ministry of Science, Innovation and Universities offers a search engine to look for all the possible degrees, masters and doctorates that can be followed in the different Spanish Universities
www.opintopolku.fi (www.studyinfo.fi)	FI	Educational institutions also provide information of their own learning opportunities on their own websites
www.parcoursup.fr	FR	
www.trouvermonmaster.gouv.fr	FR	
http://studyinhungary.hu/study-in-hungary/menu/universities.html	HU	
https://www.felvi.hu/	HU	
www.oktatas.hu/kozneveles/kir	HU	
https://springboardcourses.ie/	IE	
www.universitaly.it	IT	
www.studyincroatia.hr/	HR	
http://mzos.hr/dbApp/pregled.aspx?appName=StudProgrami	HR	
https://mozvag.srce.hr/preglednik/	HR	
www.studyinprussia.eu/study-guide	KY	
www.uni.lu	LU	
www.cedies.lu	LU	
www.studyinlatvia.lv	LV	
http://svr.aic.lv	LV	For people searching for information regarding the legal status of HEIs and study programmes, verification of legal mandate, consumer protection
https://mon.gov.mk	MK	Ministry of Education and Science regularly publishes information about possibilities and scholarships offered to Macedonian students to learn or study in another EU country
www.mcast.edu.mt/	MT	Full-time courses
https://shortcourses.mcast.edu.mt/	MT	Short courses
www.um.edu.mt/	MT	
http://exploremoreproject.eu/en/	MT	Career Guidance platform: interactive platform which helps to facilitate

		career choices and provide information on courses available in post-secondary institutions in Malta
www.myfuture.com/college		
www.myworldofwork.co.uk/learn-and-train		
www.duo.nl/zakelijk/hoger-onderwijs/studentenadministratie/croho.jsp	NL	Centraal Register Opleidingen Hoger Onderwijs (CROHO), maintained by DUO
www.studiekeuze123.nl/	NL	is initiated by the Ministry of Education and created in cooperation between students and providers of recognised higher education. Studiekeuze123 is a foundation set up by students, higher education providers and the Ministry of Education, Culture and Science to collect and disseminate objective study choice information. Studiekeuze123 manages information about the recognised study programs at universities of applied sciences and research universities and conducts annually the National Student Survey
studyinnorway.no	NO	Prospective foreign students
www.studyportals.com/		
www.studera.nu	SE	
www.studyinsweden.se	SE	HE for current and future international students
http://portal.evs.gov.si/home	SI	eVŠ
http://studyinslovenia.si/study/programmes-in-english/	SI	Study in Slovenia (Comenius)
http://office.studyin.sk/	SK	portal of the Ministry of Education, Science, Research and Sport SR - opportunities in the field of education for foreign students
www.scholarships.sk/en/	SK	National Scholarship Programme of the Slovak Republic for students, PhD students, university teachers, researchers and artists, is funded by the Ministry of Education, Science, Research and Sport of the Slovak Republic
https://polon.nauka.gov.pl/ https://polon.nauka.gov.pl/en/index.html	PL	Apart from the websites of the given HEIs, information on the study programmes offered by the HEI are presented in the POL-on database
http://studyinserbia.rs/	RS	Database for foreign students
www.studyinturkey.com/	TR	
https://www.unifrog.org/	UK	Unifrog
https://study-uk.britishcouncil.org/	UK	

Adult Education

Database	Country	Additional Information
www.vdab.be/opleidingen	BE(vl)	VDAB = Flemish PES
www.syntra.be/nl	BE(vl)	Syntra - entrepreneur training; Also VET
www.leforem.be/FORMAPass/catalogue-des-formations-insertions.html	BE(fr)	Also contains job opportunities and information about VNFIL; also VET
www.formation.be/	BE(fr)	retraining programmes accredited by Ministry of Youth and Sports
https://akredis.msmt.cz/	CZ	
https://vzdelavanivsem.cz/databaze-kurzu/kategorie	CZ	Example of regional database - AE opportunities in South Moravia region – under regional authority of South Moravia
www.volkshochschule.de	DE	AE Association, all courses offered by AE centers in Germany
www.der-weiterbildungsratgeber.de	DE	by Federal Ministry of Education and Research, information and LOps in field of further education and training, including “Info-Telefon Weiterbildungsbeartung” (direct service phone line offering advice and careers counselling)
www.juntadeandalucia.es/organismos/empleoempresaycomercio/areas/formacion-empleo.html http://plan.aragon.es/MapaRec.nsf/General www.asturias.es/trabajastur www.empleacantabria.com/es/portal.do?IDM=40&NM=1 http://pop.jccm.es/formate/ www.fafecyl.jcyl.es/ www.oficinadetreball.gencat.cat/socfuncions/CercadorCursosSimple.do?idiomaNavegacio=ca www.servef.gva.es/busco-formacion http://extremaduratrabaja.gobex.es/ciudadanos/cursos www.lanbide.net/plsql/fr_menu?idioma=C http://emprego.xunta.gal/portal/index.php/gl/?option=com_content&view=article&id=205	ES	Each regional PES has their own training offers

https://apps.caib.es/acccforfront/principal.xhtml?seleccion=aplicacions13 www3.gobiernodecanarias.org/empleo/portal/web/sce/servicios/cursos www.larioja.org/empleo-formacion/es/formacion-empleo www.madrid.org/cs/Satellite?language=es&pagename=Empleo%2FPage%2FEMPL_Home www.sefcarm.es/web/pagina?IDCONTENIDO=30040&IDTIPO=100&RASTRO=c\$m29962 www.navarra.es/home_es/Temas/Empleo+y+Economia/Empleo/Formacion/Default.htm		
www.sepe.es/contenidos/personas/formacion/especialidades_formativas/buscador_especialidades_formativas.html www.sepe.es/contenidos/personas/formacion/certificados_de_profesionalidad/certificados_profesionalidad.html	ES	Spanish PES has a search engine to look for different training specialties and professional certifications
www.educacion.gob.es/centros/home.do	ES	State Register of Non-University Teaching and Training Institutions (RCD) contains information and links to all Spanish education centres
www.moncompteactivite.gouv.fr/cpa-public/	FR	
http://szakkesites.hu/okj/abc_index	HU	Also VET
www.onestepup.ie/index.html	IE	managed by AONTAS
www.lifelong-learning.lu/Accueil/en	LU	LLL
www.macibaspieaugusajiem.lv	LV	adults, information on adult LOps offered in nat ESF project, to be developed as nat AE system database, information will be relayed to niid.lv for subsequent transfer to LOQ (if required)
https://lifelonglearning.gov.mt/public/frmCoursesCategory.aspx?cat=14	MT	
<p>Jobsplus offers: courses for transversal and specific labour market relevant skills pegged to NQ and EQF (https://jobsplus.gov.mt/training-opportunities); providing unemployed jobseekers with hands on experience in a real working environment such as the Work Exposure Scheme (https://jobsplus.gov.mt/schemes-jobseekers/work-</p>	MT	

schemes), Traineeship Scheme (https://jobsplus.gov.mt/schemes-jobseekers/traineeships) and the Work Placement Scheme (https://jobsplus.gov.mt/schemes-jobseekers/work-placement-scheme), part-financed by the ESF; grants to individuals (irrespective of their employment status) who wish to follow off-the-job training that is not offered by Jobsplus (https://jobsplus.gov.mt/schemes-jobseekers/training-pays-scheme), part-financed by the ESF; trade testing through which individual may have his/her competences validated (https://jobsplus.gov.mt/training-opportunities/trade-testing-system)		
https://pregled.acs.si/	SI	Kam po znanje
http://isdv.iedu.sk/Exams.aspx	SK	a portal the Ministry of Education, Science, Research and Sport SR providing a database of accredited courses of further education and dates of exams for obtaining qualifications
www.education.sk	SK	group of private portals covering school and further education
www.uslugirozwojowe.parp.gov.pl	PL	Polish Agency for Enterprise Development is administrator of Development Services Database; entrepreneurs, their employees and individuals who want to improve their Qs, function to rate educational service, audits of entities in database by agency
https://ec.europa.eu/epale/pl	PL	Electronic Platform for Adult Learning in Europe (EPALE)
https://nationalcareersservice.direct.gov.uk/	UK	National Careers Service (NCS)
www.leeds.gov.uk/residents/learning-and-job-opportunities/learning-opportunities	UK	Example of Local Council website

Other sources

- European Solidarity Corps (<http://eks.org.pl>)
- SALTO Eastern Europe and Caucasus Resource Centre (www.salto-youth.net/eeca)
- Polish-Lithuanian Youth Exchange Fund and Polish-Ukrainian Council of Youth Exchange (www.wymianymlodziezy.frse.org.pl/)
- European Network of Information on Education (www.eurydice.org.pl)
- www.jobbnorge.no/search